
STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD
AGENDA

Venue: This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore 
will not take place in a physical location. 

Date: Monday, 6th July, 2020
Time: 10.00 am
Contact Officer: Clive Willoughby            Tel: 01946 598328

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 19 February 2020 1 - 4

4. Moorside Update 5 - 10

5. The UK Government's approach to identifying a site for a 
Geological Disposal Facility (GDF) for higher-activity radioactive 
waste. 

11 - 12

6. NDA Strategy 4 13 - 16

7. Crown Estate Offshore Wind Leasing Round 4 17 - 20

8. Exempt Information 

The Chair to move:
That under Section 100 (a) (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following item on the grounds that, if they were present, there 
could be disclosed to them exempt information as defined in the 
relevant paragraphs of Schedule 12A of the Act.

9. Planning Update 

10. Date and Time of Next Meeting 

Public Document Pack



Membership: Councillors Steven Morgan (Chair), Felicity Wilson (Deputy 
Chair), David Banks, Gwynneth Everett, Gemma Dinsdale, David Moore and 
Sam Pollen

Contacts: Direct Dial: 01946 598328
E-mail: clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk



STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 19 FEBRUARY 2020

Present: Councillors Steven Morgan, in the Chair; David Banks, 
Gemma Dinsdale, David Moore and Sam Pollen.

Officers: Steve Smith (Interim Nuclear Projects Manager), Robert Ward (Nuclear 
Sector Development Manager), Mitchell McCombe (Nuclear Sector 
Development Officer), Heather Morrison (Principal Planning Officer), Catherine 
Little (Nuclear Projects & Programmes Technical Support Officer) and Clive 
Willoughby (Democratic Services Officer).

SN 19/31 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Felicity Wilson, who joined 
the meeting via telephone conference.

SN 19/32 Declarations of Interest 

Councillor Dave Banks, Gemma Dinsdale, Steven Morgan, Sam Pollen and 
Felicity Wilson declared a personal interest in the agenda items due to either 
being employed or having been employed in the nuclear industry.

SN 19/33 Minutes of the Meeting held on  17 December 2019 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 17 December 2019 be 
signed by the Chair as a correct record.

SN 19/34 Nuclear Decommissioning Authority Consultation on the Draft Business
           Plan 2020-2023. 

The Nuclear Sector Development Officer introduced this item to the Board.
It was stated that the NDA was required under the Energy Act 2004 to prepare 
annual plans for each financial year, outlining the work being carried out 
towards decommissioning of its sites and allocated funding.

It was also stated that although the public consultation period closed on 14 
February 2020, Copeland Borough Council had been granted an extension until 
21 February 2020.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



During the discussion that followed, members expressed their disappointment 
at the lack of detail contained within the consultation document.  

RESOLVED:- that
a) The proposed consultation response be reviewed and final comments be 

incorporated, and
b) Delegated authority to approve the final submission of the consultation 

response be granted to the Chair of the Strategic Nuclear and Energy 
Board in cooperation with the Portfolio Holder for Nuclear and Corporate 
Services and the Chief Executive Officer. 

SN 19/35 Nuclear Decommissioning Authority draft Local Economic and Social 
           Impact Strategy 2020 to 2026 consultation 

The Nuclear Sector Development Manager introduced this item to the Board.
It was stated that the NDA was required under the Energy Act 2004 to support 
activities that deliver social, economic or environmental benefit to communities 
living near designated sites; and to ensure the development and maintenance of 
a skilled workforce to undertake nuclear decommissioning in the UK. 

It was stated that the consultation period would close on 13 March 2020.

During the discussion that followed, members expressed their disappointment 
at the consultation document and stated that it contained things already known 
and was not a strategy.

Concern was expressed regarding funding streams, who would be responsible 
for them, the criteria for obtaining funding and the process.
Councillor Banks stated he would like to see Sellafield Ltd taking over more 
buildings around the borough, as they planned to in Millom

Note: At this point Councillor Banks declared a non-pecuniary interest due to 
being a Director of Phoenix Enterprise Centre, Cleator Moor.

The Board further discussed transport, West Cumberland Hospital and the local 
supply chain.    

RESOLVED:- that
a) The Nuclear Decommissioning Authority draft Local Economic and Social 

Impact Strategy 2020 to 2026 consultation report be noted, and
b) Delegated authority to develop and submit a response to the consultation 

on behalf of Copeland Borough Council be granted to the Chair of the 
Page 2



Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board in cooperation with the Portfolio 
Holder for Nuclear and Corporate Services and the Chief Executive Officer. 

SN 19/36 Nuclear Projects 

The Interim Nuclear Projects Manager provided the Board with an update on 
Nuclear Projects. This included an update on the UK Small Modular Reactors.

RESOLVED:- that the updated be noted.

SN 19/37 Exempt Information 

RESOLVED – that the press and public be excluded for the remaining items of 
business in view of the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

SN 19/38 Planning Update 

The Principal Planning Officer provided the Board with an update of 
developments at Sellafield Limited.

RESOLVED:- That the Update be noted.

SN 19/39 Date and Time of Next Meeting 

The next meeting of the Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board will be held on 
Tuesday 28 April 2020 at 2:00pm, in the Bainbridge Room, The Copeland Centre, 
Whitehaven.

The Meeting closed at 3.55 pm 

Chair

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD 200706

Moorside Update

LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham, Chief Executive Officer
REPORT AUTHOR: Rob Ward, Nuclear Sector Development Manager

Summary:

This paper provides an update on recent developments relating to the Moorside site, which 
is identified in a National Policy Statement as a site for large-scale nuclear new build.

Recommendation:

That Members of the Board:

1. Note the information presented in this paper.

1. Introduction

1.1. Members will recall recent SNEB updates and Executive reports to Full Council relating 
to renewed interest in development of the Moorside site for new low carbon energy 
generation.

1.2. This paper provides an update on regional activities to support low-carbon energy 
development in Cumbria and a summary of the current position in relation to 
proposals by the UK SMR consortium and the newly formed Moorside Consortium.

2. Clean Energy Park Vision

2.1. A small team has been established under the Cumbria LEP Clean Energy Sector Panel, 
including representatives from Cumbria LEP, NDA, Sellafield Ltd, North West Nuclear 
Arc, Jacobs and the Council’s Nuclear Sector Development Manager, with the remit 
to:

 Lead on developing low-carbon energy schemes for the county; 
 In so doing attract inward investment into the region; 
 Enable the maximum possible industrial growth and resulting economic benefits 

for other Cumbrian sectors that include clean energy, manufacturing, logistics 
and a range of professional services. 

2.2. In response to emerging opportunities, the team has developed the Cumbria Clean 
Energy Park vision for a low carbon energy hub on the West Coast, centred on 
Moorside. This vision is provided at Appendix A.

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



3. Cumbria Nuclear Prospectus

3.1. The Clean Energy Park Vision has been built into the Cumbria Nuclear Prospectus 
document, which is a sector-led vision for Cumbria’s nuclear future. The Prospectus 
aims to raise the profile of Cumbria as the Centre of Nuclear Excellence and revitalise 
the Energy Coast, by showing how local capability across industry, supply chain and 
academia within a supportive community makes this the place to deliver new missions 
that support rapid decarbonisation of the UK's energy system.

3.2. This document has been produced at a time when there is real opportunity to put 
forward a place-led proposal for delivery of large-scale low-carbon energy 
infrastructure, which could play a significant role in a green economic recovery, 
meeting the UK’s Net Zero targets and driving regional prosperity.

4. Proposals

4.1. The Council and the Cumbria LEP Clean Energy development team have been 
approached by two organisations, the UK SMR Consortium and the newly-formed 
Moorside Consortium.

UK SMR

4.2. The UK SMR consortium, is developing a low-carbon power station around a small 
(440MWe), light water reactor technology.

4.3. The consortium, made up of Rolls Royce, Jacobs, National Nuclear Laboratory, Nuclear 
AMRC, Bam Nuttall, Assystem, Laing O’Rourke, Atkins/SNC Lavalin and TWI, received 
£18m of Industrial Strategy Challenge Funding, which was matched by the industry 
partners. This funding is supporting an initial phase of technology development during 
2020.

4.4. The Cumbria LEP Clean Energy development team is working with UK SMR to provide 
support to the development of a delivery model for the project in Cumbria, focussing 
on siting aspects, supply chain development, stakeholder coordination and socio-
economics.

4.5. The next phase of development, from 2021, would require significant further funding, 
and would enable the consortium to put the technology through the UK Generic 
Design Assessment process – the assessment by the Office for Nuclear Regulation of 
the acceptability of a reactor technology for deployment in the UK.

4.6. UK SMR has previously stated an intention for the first unit to be operational by 2029.

Page 6



Moorside Consortium

4.7. The Moorside Consortium, made up of EDF Nuclear New Build with industry partners, 
is proposing the deployment of two EPR type reactor units at Moorside. This is the 
same reactor design that is being constructed at Hinkley Point C, with an electrical 
output of 1.6GW, but the technology can also be adapted to produce a heat output.

4.8. The Consortium’s proposal includes generation of clean energy to decarbonise power, 
heat and transport, supporting growth of clean energy supply to the North and the 
development of an “industrial cluster” on the West Coast of Cumbria, powered by and 
benefitting from this blended clean energy capability.

4.9. An initial feasibility study has been completed, concluding that the site is suitable for 
hosting two EPR reactors.

4.10. The approach would be different to that taken at Hinkley Point C. This is not an EDF-
led and owned project – EDF is one member of the consortium – and CGN are not 
involved as at Hinkley, Sizewell and Bradwell.

4.11. Likewise, a finance model such as Regulated Asset Base will need to be agreed with 
government in order for the project to progress.

4.12. The Cumbria LEP Clean Energy development team is working with the Moorside 
Consortium to provide support around siting, socio-economics and stakeholder 
coordination.

Other Potential Developments

4.13. It is expected that other proposals will be forthcoming for deployment of advanced 
nuclear technologies on the Moorside site. These technologies, such as High 
Temperature Gas Cooled Reactors offer the potential to generate low carbon heat and 
steam for domestic and industrial purposes, or to produce low carbon synthetic 
hydrogen as transport or aviation fuel.

5. Conclusion

5.1. Both of the proposals described in this paper could deliver the Clean Energy Park vision 
set out in the Cumbria Nuclear Prospectus, and both align well to the Council’s agreed 
position statement relating to the Moorside site:

The Council believes that the Moorside site is fundamental to the delivery of the 
nation’s energy security and Net Zero Carbon target. The Moorside site is designated 
in the current National Policy Statement for Energy Infrastructure (EN-6) for large scale 
nuclear, a policy position that the Council fully supports. This demonstrates our 
ambition to support new nuclear developments that make meaningful contribution to 

Page 7



a low carbon economy and which bring potentially significant economic benefit to the 
area.

Copeland Borough Council supports nuclear sector development, maximum utilisation 
of existing assets in the Borough and the provision of new nuclear missions within 
Copeland, where they demonstrate that they will:

 Contribute to a more resilient economic model in Copeland, based on greater 
diversity of businesses and industries

 Provide a positive and lasting legacy to the local community;
 Contribute to achievement of the Government’s Industrial Strategy and delivery 

of the Nuclear Sector Deal targets
 Secure, develop and utilise the national asset of the nuclear skills base in 

Copeland.

5.2. Officers will continue to engage with the developers to understand plans and provide 
support as appropriate, and will keep the Board appraised of progress. Both UK SMR 
and the Moorside Consortium have formally approached the Council, and further 
engagement will be invited.

5.3. It is recommended that members of the Board:

1. Note the information in this paper.

Page 8



APPENDIX A – Clean Energy Park Vision

As part of a global effort to address climate change and decarbonise economies, the UK has 
committed to achieving net zero carbon by 2050. With over 50 percent of UK energy 
requirements in 2018 being met by carbon intensive forms of energy, mitigating further 
harmful effects of climate change will require investment in technologies that can provide 
low carbon, firm power as part of a whole system approach that supports production of low 
carbon synthetic fuels.

The Cumbria Clean Energy Park will be the deployment site and testing ground and for low 
carbon energy technologies, including nuclear new build, Small Modular Reactors and other 
Advanced Nuclear Technologies, as well as pioneering research and development in 
Robotics and AI, environmental remediation, advanced fuels and manufacturing. 

The site could support 5GW+ of new nuclear generation and also feed the National Grid 
with a further GW+ of new offshore wind power from off the Cumbrian coast by 2030. This 
regional energy platform will support new opportunities for production of Hydrogen and 
Synthetic fuels, Heat Networks and Energy Storage systems as part of a major North West 
contribution to the UK.

The Park will support the rapid development of highly skilled, green employment 
opportunities, readily available to support UK and global decarbonisation markets. 
Production of low carbon heat, power and fuels on the Park will provide opportunity to 

Page 9



decarbonise our transport infrastructure, as well as attracting new energy-intensive industry 
to Cumbria. 

We have a readymade customer for low carbon energy on our doorstep: the Sellafield site is 
one of the UK’s oldest industrial local heat and power networks - there is potential to 
develop a closed-loop energy system to power the ongoing decommissioning and 
environmental remediation mission. 

Cumbria has the pioneering heritage, innovation culture, visionary leadership, collective 
ambition and global reach to develop and deploy the UK’s future energy systems. 

The Park will sit within a network of Clean Energy and Technology Parks across the North 
West Nuclear Arc region adding up to a major Clean Energy Platform for the UK.

Page 10



STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD 060720

The UK Government’s approach to identifying a site for a Geological Disposal Facility 
(GDF) for higher-activity radioactive waste 

LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham, Chief Executive Officer
REPORT AUTHOR: Steve Smith, Nuclear Projects Manager

Summary:

This report provides Members with an update on the Government’s search for a suitable site 
and a willing community to host a Geological Disposal Facility (GDF) for the disposal of the 
UK’s higher activity radioactive waste, as described within the Government’s Working with 
Communities (WwC) policy. 

Recommendation:

That Members of the Board note the current position in relation to the Government’s search 
for a suitable site and willing community to host a GDF.

1. Introduction and background

1.1. Members of the Board will recall the programme of Member engagement events 
commencing in October of last year, which included Member briefing sessions with 
the Nuclear Decommissioning Authority, Sellafield Ltd, the Committee on Radioactive 
Waste Management (CoRWM) and Radioactive Waste Management (RWM) Ltd, the 
wholly owned subsidiary of the NDA with the responsibility for delivering a GDF. 

1.2. This process concluded just prior to the Covid19 lockdown with a Council Members 
briefing session on 27th February to consider the relevance of the Council’s Position 
Statement on the Long Term Management of Higher Activity Radioactive Wastes 
(including Geological Disposal). This was subsequently reviewed and endorsed by 
Executive at its meeting on 16th March. Key messages within the revised policy 
statement included;

 Regardless of final location for a GDF the Copeland community is affected and 
the Sellafield site will be at the front end of the operational phase of a GDF for 
many decades to come

 Working in the best interests of our community the Council will engage in the 
process to better understand the implications for our communities and the 
Council reserves the right to vary or withdraw the nature of our involvement.

 The Council’s engagement at Working Group and/or Community Partnership 
stage does not presuppose support for a GDF in Copeland or West Cumbria. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



According to the WwC process, any future decision on this matter will be subject 
to a future Test of Public Support. In the early stages, we consider it our duty to 
our community to engage in the process to understand the implications for 
Copeland of this project.

 

2. Update on the Government’s Working with Communities approach

2.1. A number of activities have taken place over the last 3 months that form the update 
to Members;

 The Council has been at the forefront of the development of the Cumbria Nuclear 
Prospectus which with the support of a range of stakeholders, sets out a 
roadmap for Cumbria to become the Northern “Living Lab” for clean energy: 
decarbonising heat, power and transport, and driving Clean Growth as we head 
towards Net Zero by 2050. The Prospectus includes a section on ‘Managing the 
Legacy’ and recognises that the provision of a solution for safe and secure long-
term management of the UK’s higher activity radioactive waste is key to making 
the case for the UK’s nuclear new build programme.

 Officers have continued to engage with officials from RWM Ltd to understand 
the progress in the process 

 RWM Ltd continue to raise awareness nationally of the Governments approach 
to find a suitable site and willing host community for a GDF and the potential 
economic benefits that such a proposal could bring to communities. 

 At the request of the Council, RWM have prepared a draft Transport Study to 
understand the physical and financial implications of moving the waste currently 
stored on the Sellafield site to another location elsewhere in the country for 
disposal. The headlines and conclusions of the study have been previously shared 
with SNEB Members.

 In addition a draft study of the socio-economic impact of a GDF being sited 
elsewhere in England or Wales on the local economy has also been prepared, to 
help shape the Council’s understanding of the options available.

 RWM Ltd have discussed a potential ‘route map’ of the steps that they would 
need to take to establish a Working Group, which is the first public facing stage 
of the Working with Communities process, should an interested party take that 
decision to proceed to establish a Working Group.

Page 12



STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD 200706

NDA Strategy 4

LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham, Chief Executive Officer
REPORT AUTHOR: Rob Ward, Nuclear Sector Development Manager

Summary:

This paper provides a summary of the Nuclear Decommissioning Authority’s (NDA) approach 
to consultation on Strategy 4.

Recommendation:

That Members of the Board:

1. Note the information contained in the paper; and

2. Provide any comments on the pre-consultation information shared with stakeholders in 
advance of the formal consultation; and

3. Consider holding a special meeting in August or September to review a draft of the 
Council’s response to the consultation.

1. Introduction & Background

1.1. The NDA’s Strategy implements UK decommissioning and radioactive waste 
management policy. The NDA also has responsibility for implementing geological 
disposal, supply chain development and socio-economic support for local 
communities.

1.2. Schedule 2 of the Energy Act 2004 requires the NDA to review their Strategy at least 
every 5 years. The previous Strategy 3 was published in 2016 and will run to 2021.

1.3. Members will recall that there are four “Driving Themes” of the NDA Strategy:

 Spent Fuel Management
 Nuclear Materials
 Integrated Waste Management
 Site Decommissioning and Remediation

Supplemented by “Critical Enablers”:

 Asset Management
 Cyber Security
 Health, Safety, Sustainability, Environment and Wellbeing
 Information Governance

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



 People
 Public and Stakeholder Engagement
 Research, Development and Innovation
 Security and Resilience
 Socio-Economics
 Supply Chain
 Transport and Logistics

The Strategy also includes a section on “Non-NDA Liabilities”, which sets an objective 
to identify, assess and decide how to manage non-NDA liabilities (whether public 
sector liabilities (e.g. Ministry of Defence (MOD) or EDF Energy (EDFE)) or private 
sector liabilities) to deliver greater value for the UK, whilst ensuring the successful 
delivery of the NDA mission remains the priority.

1.4. The NDA Strategy is continuously developing to take account of Policy change and best 
practice, and members will recall that since the publication of Strategy 3, the Council 
has responded to consultations, reports and updates in a number of relevant areas:

 NDA Local Economic and Social Impact Strategy, 2020
 NDA Plutonium Position Paper, 2019
 BEIS Implementing Geological Disposal: Working with Communities Policy, 

2018
 RWM Site Evaluation Process, 2018
 NDA Accelerated Decommissioning of Magnox Reactors, 2018
 NDA Integrated Waste Management, 2018
 Public Accounts Committee 65th Report on NDA: Reducing Risk at Sellafield, 

2018
 ONR Regulation of Sites in the Final Stages of Decommissioning and Clean 

Up, 2018
 Environment Agency Guidance on the Requirement for Release from 

Radioactive Substances Regulations (GRR), 2018
 NDA Business Plan and Progress Reports, annually
 NDA Transport and Accommodation Strategies, ongoing

2. Consultation Process

2.1. A formal consultation on the draft Strategy 4 is scheduled to run from August to 
October 2020.

2.2. Following consideration of the consultation responses, a final draft will be presented 
to the NDA Board for endorsement in Jan 2021 prior to Ministerial review and planned 
publication in March 2021.

Page 14



3. Stakeholder Engagement

3.1. As members are aware, the NDA’s regional stakeholder manager and strategy leads 
frequently present updates to the Board. The NDA considers the Council to be a key 
stakeholder in its approach to engagement, and so under normal circumstances a 
series of presentations on each aspect of Strategy 4 would have been arranged.

3.2. Due to recent disruption and limitations on face-to-face contact in recent months, the 
NDA has adopted a more flexible approach to engagement. This approach involves 
sharing information through a range of forums including:

 SNEB
 West Cumbria Sites Stakeholder Group, working groups and Enablers group
 Nuclear Legacy Advisory Forum
 NDA Strategy Theme Overview Groups, regularly attended by Nuclear Officers

3.3. We have confidence that we are able to gain sufficient understanding through these 
channels and through day-to-day engagement with NDA colleagues to produce a 
robust response to the consultation, in reference to the Council’s past responses to 
NDA Strategy (and its component parts) and the Council’s agreed Nuclear Position 
Statements.

4. Recommendations

4.1. It is recommended that members of the Board:

 Note the information presented in this paper; and

 Provide any comments on the pre-consultation information shared with 
stakeholders in advance of the formal consultation, which will be circulated to 
members following the meeting; and

 Consider holding a special meeting in August or September to review a draft of 
the Council’s response to the consultation.

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD 200706

Crown Estate Offshore Wind Leasing Round 4

LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham, Chief Executive Officer
REPORT AUTHOR: Mitchell McCombe, Nuclear & Energy Officer

Summary:

This report introduces the Crown Estates offshore wind leasing programme to the Board, 
highlighting areas of interest for the Council.

Recommendation:

That Members of the Board:

1. Note the information contained in this report; and,

2. Consider the formation of an Offshore Wind position statement on behalf of the Council, 
similar to the Council’s nuclear position statements.

1. Introduction & Background

1.1. The Crown Estate, an independent commercial business, created by an Act of 
Parliament, holds a portfolio of assets across the UK including buildings, shorelines, 
seabed, forestry, agriculture and common land1.

1.2. The organisation (being a commercial entity) is committed to supporting the “long-
term sustainable development of the seabed” – one of these developments being 
energy generation opportunities2.

1.3. Since the late 1990s, the Crown Estate has been active in supporting the development 
of offshore wind farms around the United Kingdom (UK) by leasing areas of seabed to 
developers.

1.4. Today, offshore wind farms around the UK can generate over 10% of UK electricity 
and power up to 4.5 million homes3. 

1.5. The UK Government is committed to further offshore wind development. The 
Offshore Wind Sector Deal outlines ambitions for 30GWe of energy needs coming 
from offshore wind by 2030 and 50GWe by 20504. 

1 https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/the-crown-estate 
2 https://www.thecrownestate.co.uk/en-gb/what-we-do/on-the-seabed/ 
3 https://www.renewableuk.com/page/WindEnergy 
4 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/offshore-wind-sector-deal/offshore-wind-sector-deal 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7

https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/the-crown-estate
https://www.thecrownestate.co.uk/en-gb/what-we-do/on-the-seabed/
https://www.renewableuk.com/page/WindEnergy
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/offshore-wind-sector-deal/offshore-wind-sector-deal


2. Proposals Adjacent to the Cumbrian Coast

2.1. The Crown Estate is currently undertaking Round 4 of a leasing process for seabed in 
the Eastern Regions, Dogger Bank, the South East, Northern Wales, and the Irish Sea.

2.2. It is expected that these sites could, in total, generate around 7GWe for the UK by 
2030. This will support the UK Government’s Net Zero 2050 targets and relevant 
government strategies such as the Clean Growth Strategy. 

2.3. An area off the coast of Copeland is identified within Round 4 (see Appendix A for a 
map of the proposals). 

3. The Leasing Process

3.1. Members should note that the this is the beginning of a five-stage tender process 
leading to an announcement of the successful consortia/organisations in autumn 
2021. The Leasing Process includes the following phases:

 Pre-Qualification Questionnaire (PQQ): assessing financial capability, technical 
experience and legal compliance of bidders.

 Invitation to Tender (Stage 1): assessing the financial and technical robustness of 
projects.

 Invitation to Tender (Stage 2): multi-cycle bidding process using option fees. This 
will continue until the 7GWe is reached. 

 Plan-Level Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA): assessing the impact of the 
awarded project on relevant nature conservation sites of European importance.

 Agreement for Lease (AfL): enter into Wind Farm Agreement for Lease with 
successful applicants.

4. The National Infrastructure Planning Process5

4.1. Members should note that offshore-wind developments are currently designated as 
Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects (NSIPs). This means developers apply for 
a Development Consent Order (DCO) from the Planning Inspectorate (PINS).

4.2. The DCO consists of six stages: pre-application, acceptance, pre-examination, 
examination, recommendation and decision, and then post-decision. This can take up 
to 5 years.

5 https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/application-process/the-process/ 

Page 18

https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/application-process/the-process/


4.3. After the examination stage, PINS will then prepare a report on the application to the 
relevant Secretary of State. This must include a recommendation whether to grant or 
refuse development consent. 

5. Summary and Next Steps

5.1. Members should note that these are very early stages of a development that may take 
10 years to materialise.

5.2. At this early stage, the Crown Estate’s Leasing Programme is inherently a private 
business process, but the Council may wish to begin to form a position on the potential 
development and to engage with potential developments.

5.3. The level of engagement is likely to increase when successful consortia/organisations 
are announced in autumn 2021 and begin to formally engage with communities.

5.4. Members will appreciate the range of social, economic and environmental 
considerations in relation to offshore wind developments:

 Proposals will be of particular media and community interest due to visual and 
environmental impact;

 Large scale low carbon energy developments in the area would support the 
Clean Energy Park vision set out in the Cumbria Nuclear Prospectus;

 There is potential to secure supply chain and operational support activity in 
West Cumbria, in line with the ambition to diversify our local economy.

5.5. It is recommended that members of the Board:

1. Note the information in this report; and

2. Consider the formation of a position statement on Offshore Wind, to ensure that 
the Council’s interactions with potential developers will consistently reflect the 
Council’s agreed position on these matters.

Page 19



APPENDIX A

P
age 20


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 19 February 2020
	4 Moorside Update
	5 The UK Government's approach to identifying a site for a Geological Disposal Facility (GDF) for higher-activity radioactive waste.
	6 NDA Strategy 4
	7 Crown Estate Offshore Wind Leasing Round 4

